AMENDED AND RESTATED

MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING

BETWEEN THE

CITY OF OROVILLE

AND THE

OROVILLE POLICE OFFICERS' ASSOCIATION NON-SWORN UNIT

FEBRUARY 19, 2019 – JUNE 30, 2022

This Memorandum of Understanding, hereinafter referred to as the "Memorandum", has been approved by City Council Resolution No. 8779, adopted at its regular meeting of May 21, 2019.

TABLE OF CONTENTS

| Article | Page |
|--|------|
| ARTICLE 1 - RECOGNITION/DUES DEDUCTIONS | |
| ARTICLE 2 - SCOPE OF REPRESENTATION | |
| ARTICLE 3 - MAINTENANCE OF BENEFITS | |
| ARTICLE 4 - CITY RIGHTS AND RESPONSIBILITIES | 2 |
| ARTICLE 5 - SENIORITY | |
| ARTICLE 6 - CALL-BACK PAY | 3 |
| ARTICLE 7 - SHIFT SCHEDULE | |
| ARTICLE 8 CLOTHING ALLOWANCE | |
| ARTICLE 9 - SALARY | |
| ARTICLE 10 - OVERTIME | 4 |
| ARTICLE 11 - COMPENSATORY TIME OFF (CTO) | 5 |
| ARTICLE 12 - BI-LINGUAL PAY | 5 |
| ARTICLE 13 - SHIFT DIFFERENTIAL PAY | 5 |
| ARTICLE 14 - DISPATCHER TRAINING INCENTIVE | |
| ARTICLE 15 - EDUCATION INCENTIVE | |
| ARTICLE 16 - OUT OF CLASS PAY | 6 |
| ARTICLE 17 - RETIREMENT BENEFITS | |
| ARTICLE 18 - HEALTH BENEFITS | |
| ARTICLE 19 - LONGEVITY PAY | |
| ARTICLE 20 - VACATION POLICY | |
| ARTICLE 21 - VACANCIES | |
| ARTICLE 22 - HOLIDAYS | |
| ARTICLE 23 - SICK LEAVE | |
| ARTICLE 24 - BEREAVEMENT LEAVE | |
| ARTICLE 25 - MATERNITY LEAVE | |
| ARTICLE 26 - MILITARY LEAVE | |
| ARTICLE 27 - UNPAID LEAVE | 13 |
| ARTICLE 28 - JURY DUTY | |
| ARTICLE 29 - LIGHT DUTY | 13 |
| ARTICLE 30 - BULLETIN BOARDS | 14 |
| ARTICLE 31 - ASSOCIATION DUES | |
| ARTICLE 32 - RANDOM DRUG AND ALCOHOL TESTIN | NG14 |
| ARTICLE 33 - LAYOFF PROCEDURE | 14 |
| ARTICLE 34 - DISCIPLINE | 14 |

ARTICLE 35 - GRIEVANCE AND ADVISORY ARBITRATION PROCEDURE 18
ARTICLE 36 - CODE OF ETHICS 20
ARTICLE 37 - PEACEFUL PERFORMANCE 20
ARTICLE 38 - SAVINGS CLAUSE 21
ARTICLE 39 - ZIPPER CLAUSE 21
ARTICLE 40 - TERM AND OPENING CLAUSE 21
ARTICLE 41 - TOTAL COMPENSATION SURVEY 21
EXHIBIT "A" - SALARY SCHEDULES ATTACHMENT EXHIBIT "B" - POLICE OFFICERS CODE OF ETHICS ATTACHMENT

ARTICLE 1 - RECOGNITION/DUES DEDUCTIONS

1.1 RECOGNITION - Pursuant to Government Code sections 3507.1, the City of Oroville recognizes the Oroville Police Officers Association (OPOA) as the exclusive representative of the Police Non-Sworn Unit

The Oroville Police Officers Association (OPOA) represents the following classifications:

- Municipal Law Enforcement Officer
- Public Safety Communication Specialist
- Public Safety Communication Specialist Supervisor
- Police Records Technician
- Police Administrative Assistant
- **1.2 DUES DEDUCTIONS** Employees may sign up for Payroll Deductions of Association dues with the Association. The Association will certify to the City any new members of the Association.

Association agrees to provide a listing of all additions or deletions of membership or requested changes to establish payroll deductions of its members, to the City.

The Association shall indemnify, defend, and hold harmless the City, its officers, employees, and agents acting on its behalf from and against any and all losses, damages, costs, expenses, claims, demands, actions, suits, judgments and other forms of liability arising out of the application or enforcement of this Section.

Any Association member who notifies the City of their desire to discontinue dues or otherwise withdraw from Association membership shall be referred back to the Association. The City agrees to continue all dues deductions until notified of a deduction change by the Association

ARTICLE 2 - SCOPE OF REPRESENTATION

2.1 This agreement covers the wages, hours, terms and conditions of employment for the term of the agreement for those employees represented by the OPOA.

ARTICLE 3 - MAINTENANCE OF BENEFITS

3.1 Changes to the City's Personnel Rules & Regulations, policies and Department Policies shall require a meet and confer with the OPOA prior to implementation.

ARTICLE 4 - CITY RIGHTS AND RESPONSIBILITIES

- 4.1 The City retains, solely and exclusively, all the rights, powers and authority exercised or held prior to the execution of this Memorandum, except as expressly limited by a specific provision of this Memorandum. Without limiting the generality of the foregoing, the rights, powers, and authority retained solely and exclusively by the City enumerated herein, include, but are not limited to, the requirements of this Memorandum and/or any provision of law whether it be statutory or judicial:
 - To manage and direct its business and personnel
 - To manage, control, and determine the mission of its departments, building facilities, and operations
 - To create, change, combine or abolish jobs, departments and facilities in whole or in part
 - To subcontract or discontinue work for economic or operational reasons
 - To direct the work force
 - To increase or decrease the work force and determine the number of employees needed
 - To hire, transfer, promote and maintain the discipline and efficiency of its employees to establish work standards, schedules of operation and reasonable workload
 - To specify or assign work requirements and require overtime
 - To schedule working hours and shifts
 - To adopt rules of conduct and penalties for violation thereof
 - To determine the type and scope of work to be performed and the services to be provided
 - To determine the methods, processes, means, and places of providing services and to take whatever action necessary to prepare for and operate in an emergency

Nothing in this Section shall be construed to limit, amend, decrease, revoke or otherwise modify the rights vested in the City by any regulating, authorizing or empowering the City to act or refrain from acting.

ARTICLE 5 - SENIORITY

- **5.1 OVERALL SENIORITY** "Seniority" for the purposes of vacation accrual shall be computed based on total uninterrupted length of service with the City.
- **5.2 CLASSIFICATION SENIORITY** Classification Seniority is defined as the total time served in the classification or higher classification within the department.
- **5.3 DEPARTMENT SENIORITY** Department Seniority begins upon fulltime hire in the Department.
- 5.4 TIES IN SENIORITY Whenever two or more employees have the same seniority

- date, the order of seniority shall be determined by the employee's ranking on the eligibility list.
- **5.5 SENIORITY LIST** The Department shall provide a seniority list to the OPOA annually in July. The list shall include the employees' name, overall seniority date with the City, current classification seniority date.

ARTICLE 6 - CALL-BACK PAY

- In the event of a call-back or return to duty, an employee shall receive a minimum of two (2) hours, at the regular rate of pay. If the time worked exceeds two (2) hours, then the employee shall receive pay for time worked at the appropriate rate of pay, calculated to the nearest fifteen (15) minutes.
- 6.2 Should the call-back require an employee to work on a day they are not otherwise scheduled to work because of a normal day off or scheduled vacation, the minimum call-back for the purposes of 6.1 above shall read three (3) hours instead of two (2) hours.

ARTICLE 7 - SHIFT SCHEDULE

- 7.1 The City shall place all administrative staff (Community Services Officer, Records Technician and Administrative Assistant) on a 5/8 schedule Monday thru Friday to coincide with other administrative personnel. At the discretion of the Chief of Police, a 4/10 work schedule may be implemented to meet the needs of the department and City.
- 7.2 Dispatchers shall remain on the 4/10 schedule. However, at the Police Chief's discretion the schedule may be modified to a 5/8 schedule in order to accommodate staffing deficiencies or other emergency situations. Dispatchers shall revert to the 4/10 schedule once staffing needs or the emergency situation no longer exists.
- **7.3** Any change in shift rotation shall be subject to meet and confer.

ARTICLE 8 - CLOTHING ALLOWANCE

8.1 Each employee covered by this Memorandum may purchase uniforms in January and July of each year, up to \$720 per calendar year. Uniforms may be purchased on account from the City vendor or if purchased elsewhere, employee will pay up front and get reimbursed upon presenting receipts. Reimbursements shall be paid during a normal payroll cycle and shall include any required deductions for taxes and/or pension contributions as applicable. Uniforms shall be purchased according to the Oroville Police Department Uniform Policy No. 1045, for any article for Class A (1045.7), B (1045.7.2), C (1045.7.3) or D (1045.7.4) uniforms.

The City will not pay for or reimburse for any uniform articles that are not mentioned above. If there is a question of whether the uniform article purchase will or will not be

reimbursable, employees shall utilize their chain of command to seek prior authorization from the Chief of Police, before said purchases are made.

ARTICLE 9 - SALARY

- **9.1 SALARY -** The City agrees to compensate OPOA employees in accordance with the Classifications and Compensations as set forth in the attached Exhibit "A."
- 9.2 SALARY STEPS All salary steps are to be based on merit. Advancements shall not be automatic but shall depend upon increased service value of an employee to the City as exemplified by recommendations of the employee's supervising official, length of service, productivity, performance record, special training undertaken, or other pertinent evidence.

SALARY TIER 1 EMPLOYEES - Employees hired before January 1, 2018 shall be a tier 1 employees, which is 5% in between each salary step. To be eligible for advancement to Step F or G, the member must have completed two (2) years in their current classification. (See exhibit A)

SALARY TIER 2 EMPLOYEES - Employees hired on or after January 1, 2018 shall be tier 2 employees, which is 2.5% in between each salary step. (See exhibit B)

9.3 SALARY INCREASES

- Effective the first pay period following July 1, 2019 the City shall implement a 4% salary increase.
- Effective the first pay period following July 1, 2020 the City shall implement a 4% salary increase.
- Effective the first pay period following July 1, 2021 the City shall implement a 4% salary increase.

ARTICLE 10 - OVERTIME

- 10.1 Employees required to work in excess of forty (40) hours per week shall receive one and one-half (1½) times their appropriate rate of pay for all hours in excess of forty (40) hours. In computing the hours worked in any week, time off for holidays, vacations and compensatory time off shall be calculated as time worked. Earned overtime shall be paid in the regular biweekly payroll; provided however, that the employee may elect to have the monetary value of the overtime assigned to an individual account of compensatory time off from duty.
- 10.2 Time worked contiguous to a normally assigned shift shall be treated as overtime.

10.3 The department shall not change a unit employee's shift solely for the reason of avoiding payment of overtime. In the event that less than 48 consecutive hours advance notice is given by the department to the employee of such change, the first shift shall be compensated at the rate of time and one-half, as a one-time shift-change stipend. This Section shall not apply to voluntary shift trade amongst unit employees.

ARTICLE 11 - COMPENSATORY TIME OFF (CTO)

11.1 COMPENSATORY TIME OFF (CTO) -

Members may accrue compensatory time in lieu of overtime pay. The accrual rate for CTO shall be one and one-half hours for each hour of overtime worked.

- No more than 120 hours of CTO may be carried on the books at any time.
- A member's decision to elect CTO instead of overtime pay is irrevocable.
- Upon separation, the member will be paid at the member's current hourly rate for the remaining CTO balance.
- CTO may be cashed out in March and December. In the case of an emergency, CTO may be cashed out at the discretion of the Chief of Police.
- Members have the option of receiving CTO cash out on a separate check.
- Requests made 21 days in advance shall be honored, unless, at the Chief
 of Police's discretion, staffing levels are such that honoring the request
 would pose an undue hardship on the department.

ARTICLE 12 - BI-LINGUAL PAY

12.1 BI-LINGUAL PAY - Employees proficient to a working level in a non-English language that is commonly encountered in the area, shall receive \$200 per month. Languages currently eligible for bi-lingual pay are: Spanish, Hmong, Mien and Vietnamese, or any other languages as approved by the City Administrator.

ARTICLE 13 - SHIFT DIFFERENTIAL PAY

13.1 SHIFT DIFFERENTIAL PAY - Employees working swing shift (between the hours of 1600 and 0200) shall receive an additional \$.58 per hour to their base pay for shift differential. Employees working the graveyard shift (between the hours of 2000 and 0600) shall receive an additional \$1.16 per hour to their base pay for shift differential pay.

ARTICLE 14 - DISPATCHER TRAINING INCENTIVE

14.1 DISPATCHER TRAINING INCENTIVE - Qualified Post Certified Public Safety Communication Specialists assigned by Department Management to train new employees shall be paid an additional 5% pay per hour for the hours they perform such training.

ARTICLE 15 - EDUCATION INCENTIVE

- **15.1 EDUCATION INCENTIVE** All employees shall be eligible upon receipt of pertinent documentation for education incentive pay as follows:
 - B.A. or B.S. degree

\$250.00/Mo.

A.A. or A.S. degree or 60 units of
 General Education and/or job relate

\$125.00/Mo.

General Education and/or job related courses

The member must have taken undergraduate course work provided by a community college, college, or university or other educational institution, which is recognized and published by the U.S. Secretary of Education, in pursuit of an AA, AS, BA, BS or undergraduate certification. No employee may receive compensation for more than one degree.

ARTICLE 16 - OUT OF CLASS PAY

16.1 An employee assigned to temporary duties of a higher job classification shall not receive the pay of the higher job classification, but shall at the time of the temporary assignment immediately receive 5% above their base pay.

ARTICLE 17 - RETIREMENT BENEFITS

17.1 CLASSIC MEMBERS

All OPOA Non-Sworn members employed with the City prior to January 1, 2013 shall maintain their current CalPERS formula and retirement benefit calculations. All classic members shall pay a member contribution of 10%.

NEW MEMBERS - Effective January 1, 2013 and upon hire, all new OPOA Non-Sworn members shall receive the 2%@62 formula and shall pay 50% of the normal cost, as determined by CalPERS, plus an additional 3% cost sharing contribution. "New members" shall be defined as individual who becomes a member of a public retirement system for the first time on or after January 1, 2013, and who was not a member of another public retirement system prior to that date, and who is not subject to reciprocity with another public retirement system.

MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS -

- The City agrees to maintain the 4th Level 1959 Survivor Benefit for all members.
- Effective January 1, 2013 or after, new OPOA Non-Sworn members will have their retirement benefit calculations based off their three (3) highest years.
- Sick Leave Conversion for P.E.R.S Retirement Credit is available for all members.

17.2: PUBLIC EMPLOYEE PENSION REFORM ACT:

It is the intent of the Parties that the terms set forth herein be consistent with the provisions of the Public Employee Pension Reform Act ("PEPRA") effective January 1, 2013, as it may be amended from time to time. In the event that the provisions of PEPRA are inconsistent with the provisions of this Agreement, the provisions set forth in PEPRA shall prevail.

ARTICLE 18 - HEALTH BENEFITS

18.1 The City agrees to continue to provide insurance benefits for employees and their dependents who are otherwise qualified and who desire coverage of Health, Dental, Life, Vision, and Long-term Disability insurance.

The City currently contributes the following amounts towards medical insurance:

| | Tier 1 l | Health Benefits | |
|----------------------|----------------|-----------------------|------------|
| (E | mployees hired | prior to February 19, | 2019) |
| Plan | Gold PPO | HDHP-10% | Silver PPO |
| Employee Only | 100% | 100% | 100% |
| Employee + 1 | \$756.40 | \$729.92 | \$703.46 |
| Employee + Family | \$835.50 | \$801.10 | \$766.68 |

| Tier 2 Health Benefits (Employees hired after February 19, 2019) | | | | | | | | | | |
|--|-----------------|-----------------|------------|--|--|--|--|--|--|--|
| Plan | Gold PPO | HDHP-10% | Silver PPO | | | | | | | |
| Employee Only | Silver PPO Rate | Silver PPO Rate | 100% | | | | | | | |
| Employee + 1 | 0 | 0 | \$703.46 | | | | | | | |
| Employee + Family | 0 | 0 | \$766.68 | | | | | | | |

- The City currently contributes \$59.10 per month, per employee, for dental insurance.
- The City currently contributes 100% per month, per employee, for vision insurance.
- The City currently contributes 100% per month, per employee, for life and long-term disability insurance.

18.2 HEALTH INSURANCE REVIEW COMMITTEE

The City agrees to participate in the established Health Insurance Review Committee. The Human Resource Analyst and up to two representatives from each City employee group may attend the meeting on behalf of the City of Oroville. The purpose of the Committee is on-going review of health,

dental and vision plans and the making of recommendations to the City Council, City Administrator and the respective employee group regarding benefit levels, services, methods of cost containment, alternative plans and the like. Committee employees shall establish guidelines for conducting meetings, frequency of meetings and the Committee work program. Employee representatives shall not be charged vacation or other leave time if such meetings are held during the employee's normal work hours, nor shall such employees receive overtime or callback pay for service on the committee. The Committee shall have access to such non-confidential information as necessary to carry out its purpose.

18.3 APPROVAL OF FUTURE PLAN CHANGES

- A. Both the City and the OPOA will have the opportunity to present proposals on insurance plans and rates. Notwithstanding any provision of this subsection to the contrary, the City employee groups agree that future changes in the health and dental insurance plan benefits or structure shall be approved by a majority of the employees of the City who are covered by the plan who vote on such changes.
- B. The Health Insurance Review Committee established in Section 18.2 shall review and recommend to the Oroville City Council those proposed changes in the plan benefits and structure to be voted upon by the employees pursuant to Subsection 18.3 (A). The proposed changes reviewed by the Committee may be initiated by the Committee, or by the City, by and through the City Administrator. After review and acceptance of Committee recommendations by the City Council, the City Clerk shall, within fifteen (15) calendar days, conduct a secret ballot election of covered

18.4 INTERNAL REVENUE CODE SECTION 125 COLLABORATION

The City and the OPOA agree to collaborate in the planning and implementation of a program qualified under Section 125 of the Internal Revenue Code.

18.5 RETIREE MEDICAL

The City agrees that a retired employee or spouse of a deceased retired employee, at their own expense, may purchase health insurance benefits at the current premium rates paid by the City for regular employees.

18.6 DEFERRED COMPENSATION

The City shall offer regular full-time employees the opportunity to participate in a Section 457 Deferred Compensation Plan.

ARTICLE 19 - LONGEVITY PAY

19.1 In recognition for many years of continuous service as a City of Oroville employee, the City shall make an annual award to each qualifying employee in the educational incentive shown below:

| YEARS | INCENTIVE |
|------------------|------------------|
| 20 years or more | \$300.00 |
| 15-19 years | \$150.00 |

The City Council shall decide on the timing and manner for the award presentation.

ARTICLE 20 - VACATION POLICY

- **20.1** Every employee who, on the most recent anniversary date of employment shall be entitled to vacation as follows:
 - 1 through 4 years 80 hours
 - 5 through 11 years 120 hours
 - 12+ years 8 hours for each additional year to a maximum of 160 hours.
- **20.2 VACATION CARRYOVER** The employee shall cease to earn vacation benefits that exceed two (2) times the employee's annual earned vacation. Included in the calculation of the accrual ceiling are the vacation days earned as sick leave incentive, as herein provided.

An employee who has properly attempted to schedule vacation to avoid forfeiture that may be imposed due to the accrual ceiling may petition the Chief of Police and City Administrator to carry over vacation in excess of the ceiling, but in no case shall the excess be subject to pay-off. The Chief of Police has the prerogative to assign the employee time off to avoid excess accrual. No unit employee will lose vacation accrual rights if their vacation is canceled or is denied and, at the time said vacation was requested, an appropriate "vacation slot" was available and was applied for in a timely and proper manner. The employee's payroll check from the City shall serve as notification of the employee vacation accrual.

20.3 An employee who is on leave of absence without pay for a period exceeding thirty (30) consecutive days shall fail to qualify for full vacation benefits but shall be entitled to prorated vacation benefits. An employee whose employment is terminated shall be entitled to prorated vacation.

Vacation shall be prorated by dividing the straight time hours actually worked by

- 173.3, and then multiplying that factor by 1/12, the vacation the employee would have earned had the anniversary year been fully worked.
- 20.4 Vacation policy sign up will be conducted in accordance with overall seniority with the Police Department. Employees will be allowed to sign up for any one continuous increment, which they choose and for which they are eligible prior to passing the list. An additional increment of time may be chosen upon recirculation of the list. Once a list is passed on it shall circulate in accordance with seniority without any alteration of rotation or any right for senior employees to bump less senior employee's choices of vacation.

ARTICLE 21 - VACANCIES

21.1 VACANCIES - When a position becomes vacant, the vacancy shall be posted on the department bulletin board for a period of five (5) business days prior to making the opening public.

ARTICLE 22 - HOLIDAYS

- 22.1 The following holidays shall be observed by the City:
 - (1) New Year's Day, January 1
 - (2) Martin Luther King Day, 3rd Monday in January
 - (3) Lincoln's Birthday, February 12
 - (4) President's Day, 3rd Monday in February
 - (5) Memorial Day, last Monday in May
 - (6) Independence Day, July 4
 - (7) Labor Day, the 1st Monday in September
 - (8) Veteran's Day, November 11
 - (9) Thanksgiving Day, 4th Thursday in November
 - (10) The day after Thanksgiving
 - (11) The day before Christmas
 - (12) Christmas Day, December 25
 - (13) Floating Holiday, Refer to Article 23.5

22.2 HOLIDAY PAY:

- A. 4/10 rotating shift schedule. Employees shall be compensated for each holiday by ten (10) hours of straight time pay. In the event the employee is required to work on any of the specified holidays set forth above, the compensation shall be one and one-half (1½) times the straight time rate of pay irrespective of when the holidays may be observed by the employee. The employee may choose to bank holiday hours in a "Holiday Pay" bank. All holiday hours will be cashed out by the first paycheck in December of each year.
- B. 4/10 weekday work schedule. Employees shall be compensated for time off in observance of each holiday by ten (10) hours of straight time pay. In the event

- the employee is required to work on any of the specified holidays set forth above, the compensation shall be one and one-half (1 $\frac{1}{2}$) times the straight time rate of pay.
- C. 5/8 weekday work schedule. Employees shall be compensated for time off in observance of each holiday by eight (8) hours of straight time pay. In the event the employee is required to work on any of the specified holidays set forth above, the compensation shall be one and one-half (1½) times the straight time rate of pay.
- 22.3 No holiday leave shall be used in place of vacation leave except when the holiday falls within a regularly scheduled vacation leave.
- 22.4 The employee may choose to bank holiday hours in a "Holiday Pay" bank. All holiday hours will be cashed out by the first pay check in December of each year as prescribed by the Public Employee Retirement System, with the option of having a separate check or include it in payroll.
- 22.5 The City agrees to provide the employees one floating holiday that must be used by the end of the calendar year. If not used, the benefit will extinguish (no banking). If the requested time off would require that another person be called back, held over, or the vacancy filled through overtime, the leave will not be granted. The Chief of Police and the City Administrator may grant an extension.

ARTICLE 23 - SICK LEAVE

- 23.1 Sick leave is a privilege, which can be allowed only in case of actual sickness or injury of such employee or a member of an employee's immediate family, which compels an employee to be absent from work. To qualify for sick leave, an employee must notify his/her supervisor prior to the time set for beginning daily duties, in accordance with such procedures established by the City.
- 23.2 An employee may be allowed a leave of absence from duty without loss of salary on account of sickness or injury. Sick Leave with pay is cumulative at the rate of eight (8) hours for each month of service beginning the first calendar month following regular probationary employment.
- 23.3 An employee returning to duty after an absence of more than three (3) consecutive days without loss of salary resulting from sickness or injury shall provide the immediate supervisor for filing in the employee's personnel file, a doctor's certificate or personal affidavit verifying the employee was ill or injured.
- 23.4 Sick leave shall not be granted to any employee who is absent from duty due to illness or injury incurred while working for other than the City of Oroville.
- 23.5 An employee who takes a leave of absence without pay for a period in excess of thirty (30) days shall forfeit one (1) day of sick leave benefits for each such 30 day period.

- **23.6** Employees shall accumulate unused sick leave without limitation as to a maximum number of days.
- 23.7 The City shall grant one (1) extra day of vacation with pay for each six (6) consecutive month period, (January-June, July-December) on a calendar year basis in which a member in the unit works without absence other than holiday, vacation, or compensatory time off. The extra vacation day shall be added to the eligible member's balance during the first month following the six-month period in which eligibility was established.

23.8

LONG TERM EMPLOYEES – Employees with 5 or more years of City service as of February 19, 2019 that regularly retire from City service may convert up to 100% of their accumulated sick leave to purchase medical insurance, based upon such leave dollar value at the time of retirement.

SHORT TERM EMPLOYEES – Employees with less than 5 years of City service as of February 19, 2019 that regularly retire from City service may convert up to 240 hours of accumulated unused sick leave to purchase medical insurance, calculated by the hourly rate of pay, at the time of retirement, by the number of unused sick leave to a maximum of 240 hours. All other accumulated unused sick leave may be converted to CalPERS service credit.

NEW HIRES - Employees hired after February 19, 2019 are ineligible for retiree medical sick leave conversion.

23.9 An employee shall not be required to use any Sick Leave for medical and/or dental appointment(s) but may use accumulated Vacation time or compensating time off in lieu thereof.

ARTICLE 24 - BEREAVEMENT LEAVE

- 24.1 Employees who have completed six (6) months of service are entitled to receive up to five (5) days bereavement leave per occurrence, which shall not be charged to the member's sick leave, when compelled to be absent from duty by reason of death, or where death appears imminent, of immediate family. An employee desiring such leave shall notify, in writing, the Department Head of the time of absence expected, and the date of return to City service.
- 24.2 Immediate family includes the following individuals of an employee's family: spouse, domestic partner, natural, step or legal child, parent, brother, sister, grandparent, grandchild, brother-in-law, sister-in-law, mother-in-law, father-in-law.

ARTICLE 25 - MATERNITY LEAVE

25.1 Such leave shall be in accordance with applicable State and/or Federal law pursuant to California Government Code 19991.6.

ARTICLE 26 - MILITARY LEAVE

26.1 Military Leave shall be granted in accordance with the provisions of State Law. All employees entitled to military leave shall give the City Administrator an opportunity within the limits of military regulations, to determine when such leave shall be taken.

ARTICLE 27 - UNPAID LEAVE

27.1 UNPAID LEAVE - Regular or probationary employees may request, in writing, leave without pay. Response to such request shall be in writing. The Chief of Police may grant a leave of absence without pay for a period not to exceed three (3) months. The leave of absence may be extended up to twelve (12) months by the City Administrator. Leaves of absence longer than twelve (12) months shall require approval by the City Council. Upon expiration of a regularly approved leave or within a reasonable period after notice of return to duty, the employee shall be reinstated in the position held at the time leave was granted. Failure on the part of an employee, on leave, to report promptly at its expiration shall be deemed to be a resignation and be so notified.

If the approved leave of absence is more than thirty (30) days, the employee:

- A. Shall not accrue seniority.
- B. Shall not receive contributions towards any benefits.
- C. May continue medical benefits and/or life and long-term disability plans; said employee shall be responsible for 100% of the premium costs.

ARTICLE 28 - JURY DUTY

28.1 Every employee who is called or required to serve as a trial juror, upon notification and appropriate verification submitted to their supervisor, shall be entitled to be absent from their duties with the City during the period of such service or while necessarily being present in court as a result of such call. No deduction shall be made from the salary of an employee, while being interviewed for or while serving on a jury.

ARTICLE 29 - LIGHT DUTY

29.1 Members unable to perform their regularly assigned duties as a result of illness or injury (on or off the job) may be required to perform duties the City and the member's physician have determined as an acceptable assignment, and shall not impede the member's recovery. The member shall receive the rate of pay in effect

prior to the illness or injury, but that rate of pay shall be reduced by the amount of monies received from any other source to which the City contributes. Assignments under this provision may be full time or part time and shall be based on the Department needs fitting the capability of the disabled member. Member will be assigned to a 40-hour workweek during the Light Duty assignment.

ARTICLE 30 - BULLETIN BOARDS

30.1 A bulletin board shall be provided to the OPOA for use of association business. This does not include an electronic bulletin board.

ARTICLE 31 - ASSOCIATION DUES

31.1 PAYROLL DEDUCTIONS - The City shall deduct an authorized amount from each employee's paycheck to be remitted monthly to the OPOA. The OPOA shall indemnify and hold the City harmless against any and all claims against the City as a result of implementation of this article.

ARTICLE 32 - RANDOM DRUG AND ALCOHOL TESTING

32.1 OPOA members agree to the City of Oroville's Substance Abuse Policy Statement, administered by DATCO, as outlined in the City of Oroville's Policy and Procedures, for the term of this Memorandum only. Notwithstanding anything to the contrary in the City of Oroville's Substance Abuse Policy Statement, the City may not make any changes in the Policy or its application relative to members of the OPOA without written mutual agreement of the parties.

ARTICLE 33 - LAYOFF PROCEDURE

- **33.1 LAYOFF PROCEDURE** If the City finds it necessary to impose layoffs then the order of those layoffs shall be determined by Classification Seniority as defined in Section 5.2.
- **33.2 BUMPING RIGHTS** An employee who is laid off from a higher classification may assume a lower classification based on Overall Seniority as defined in Section 5.1.
- **33.3 ORDER OF LAYOFFS** Prior to laying off a full time employee all part-time or extra help employees shall be laid off.

ARTICLE 34 - DISCIPLINE

34.1 City Policy, Public Safety Officer Procedural Bill of Rights and Department Policies: It is the policy of the Department that discipline of Departmental employees be imposed on an appropriate and consistent basis. When an employee engages in misconduct in the judgment of the Department Head, disciplinary action will be initiated.

When job performance is unsatisfactory in the judgment of the Department Head, disciplinary action may be initiated.

Department Head in the case of the Oroville Police Department shall be the Chief of Police.

- **34.2** Definition: As used herein, "disciplinary action" means written reprimand, suspension without pay, reduction in pay, demotion, or dismissal.
- 34.3 Persons Authorized to Initiate Disciplinary Action: Discipline may be initiated by those authorized in the City Personnel Rules
- 34.4 Cause for Disciplinary Action: Discipline shall be for cause. Examples of conduct or performance deficiencies that may warrant discipline include, but are not limited to (more examples may be found in the City Personnel Rules and Departmental Policies):
 - A. Misstatement of facts during the hiring process;
 - B. Falsification of any entry on a City document (e.g., time card, expense report)
 - C. Disclosure of confidential information;
 - D. Insubordination or willful disobedience;
 - E. Incompetence, inefficiency, or unsatisfactory job performance;
 - F. Discriminatory, discourteous or unbecoming behavior;
 - G. Theft, misuse, or unauthorized use or possession of City property;
 - H. Dishonesty;
 - I. Misconduct, i.e., any behavior that brings harm or discredit to the City;
 - J. Being under the influence of illegal drugs or alcohol or possessing illegal drugs while on City property or on official business;
 - K. Conviction of a felony or misdemeanor that involves moral turpitude, or any other conviction or pleas of nolo contendere (no contest) or diversion for such offense, which adversely affects or brings discredit to the City;
 - L. Excessive absence or tardiness;
 - M. Absence without approved leave;
 - N. Violation of a City rule, policy, or procedure; i.e. Violence in the workplace policy, Unlawful harassment, etc.
 - O. Soliciting outside work for personal gain during the conduct of City business; engaging in outside employment for any business under contract by the City; participating in any outside employment that adversely affects the employee's City work performance; and engaging in unauthorized outside employment
 - P. Loss or failure to maintain any license, certification, and/or clearance which is required as a minimum qualification or condition of employment for the employee's position.

34.5 PRELIMINARY NOTICE OF DISCIPLINARY ACTION:

A. A copy of the preliminary notice of disciplinary action shall be served upon the employee either personally or by first class mail and certified mail, return

receipt requested, to the last known address of the employee. The last known address shall be deemed to be the last address that is within the employee's official personnel file. If notice is provided by mail, the employee shall be deemed to have received notice ten (10) workdays after the date of the mailing.

- B. The Preliminary Notice shall include:
 - a. A statement of the nature of the disciplinary action;
 - b. The effective date of the disciplinary action;
 - c. A statement of the reasons for the disciplinary action citing the item(s) under Article 34.4, or the Personnel Rules which have been violated:
 - d. Any supporting material;
 - e. A statement advising the employee of the right to appeal the action, the manner and time of which the appeal must be made, and the required content of the appeal; and,
 - f. The name and address of the person to whom all written communication regarding this appeal shall be sent.

34.6 SKELLY MEETING:

- A. An employee who is subject to disciplinary action shall have the right, within five (5) work days after receiving a Proposed Notice of Disciplinary Action to request a Skelly Meeting by filing a written request for a meeting signed by the employee or the employee's representative with the employee's consent with the City Personnel Director.
- B. Failure to respond or inaction within the specified time will result in the waiver of the right to a Skelly meeting and the proposed discipline becoming final.
- C. Upon a written request for a Skelly meeting, the City shall appoint a "Skelly Officer." The Skelly Officer will meet with the employee, listen to the arguments, and receive documents presented by the employee. Within a reasonable time, and in writing, the Skelly Officer shall respond to the employee and the employee's representative, if applicable. The Skelly Officer may dismiss, modify, or sustain the proposed discipline.
- D. If the proposed discipline is sustained or modified by the Skelly Officer, the disciplinary action shall be implemented. A final Notice of Disciplinary Action shall be served in the same manner as the Preliminary Notice of Disciplinary Action.

34.7 APPLICATION OF APPEAL PROCEDURE:

- A. Permanent Status: This article shall only apply to employees with permanent status with the City.
- B. Probationary Status: An employee in probationary status shall have no right

- to grieve or arbitrate release from probationary appointment.
- C. Temporary Employee: An employee in a temporary position shall have no right to grieve or arbitrate release from temporary appointment
- D. Temporary Upgrade (Additional Assignments): An employee in a temporary upgrade status shall have no right to grieve or arbitrate release from temporary upgrade status.
- E. A written reprimand shall be appealable only to the City Administrator or his/her designee with the right to present the employee's position and supporting evidence, but no right to confront or cross-examine witnesses. The decision of the City Administrator or designee shall be final.
- F. Upon the request of an employee with the discretion of the Department Head, Chief of Police, or Fire Chief,, a written reprimand, a counseling memorandum or letter of instruction may be removed from an employee's personnel file one year from date of issue in compliance with Public Safety Officers Procedural Bill of Rights codified in the California Government Code 3300-3311 and applicable City Ordinances and Departmental Policies.

34.8 APPEAL OF DISCIPLINARY ACTION:

- A. Within ten (10) workdays after receipt of the Final Notice of Disciplinary Action, disciplinary actions may be appealed to advisory arbitration. Notice of the appeal must be filed with the City Personnel Office. If the employee fails to file a notice of appeal within this time period, the disciplinary action shall become final and there shall be no further appeal.
- B. Appeals of disciplinary actions to advisory arbitration shall be pursuant to Article thirty five (Grievance Procedure) of this Memorandum of Understanding.
 - a. An appeal of a disciplinary action is a complaint of a permanent employee to determine whether or not there was cause for the disciplinary action, equitable discipline for the offense committed, bias and or investigatory issues arising during the investigation of the complaint.
 - b. The parties to the discipline hearing and to the selection of the arbitrator shall be the employee, who may be represented by The Bargaining Unit, self-represented, or independent counsel, and the City, which may be represented by the Personnel Department or counsel.
 - c. The fees and expenses of the arbitrator, a court reporter, and a transcript if required by the arbitrator, shall be shared equally by both parties. Advisory arbitration is the exercise of due process regarding an employee's property interest in his or her profession.

ARTICLE 35 - GRIEVANCE AND ADVISORY ARBITRATION PROCEDURE

- **35.1 PURPOSE** This grievance and advisory arbitration procedure shall be used to process and resolve grievances arising under this Agreement.
 - 35.1.1 To resolve grievances informally at the lowest possible level.
 - **35.1.2** To provide an orderly procedure for reviewing and resolving grievances promptly.

35.2 DEFINITIONS -

- **35.2.1** A grievance is a complaint of one (1) or a group of employees, or a dispute between the City and the Association, involving the interpretation, application, or enforcement of the express terms of the Agreement.
- 35.2.2 As used in this procedure, the term "immediate supervisor" means the individual who assigns reviews and directs the work of an employee.
- **35.2.3** As used in this procedure the term "party" means an employee, the Association or the City.
- **35.2.4** As used herein, representative or the Association representative, if an employee of the City, refers to an employee covered by the OPOA.
- **35.2.5** As used herein, workday shall represent any day that City Hall is open for business.
- **35.3 TIME LIMITS** Each party involved in a grievance shall act quickly so that the grievance may be resolved promptly. Every effort should be made to complete action within the time limits contained in the grievance procedure, but with the written consent of all parties, the time limitation for any step may be extended.
- **35.4 PRESENTATION** An employee or the Association representative, who is a full-time employee, or both, may present a grievance while on duty. The City agrees not to exclude employees from grievance hearings for the purposes of suppressing evidence or exclusive testimony.
- **35.5 EMPLOYEE RIGHTS** The employee retains all rights conferred by Section 3300, et seq., of the Government Code. Grievances pertaining to an individual employee must be signed by the employee personally on all appeals.
- **35.6 APPLICATION** Grievances shall be brought through this Article.
- **35.7 INFORMAL DISCUSSION -** The grievance initially shall be discussed with the immediate supervisor. Within five (5) workdays, the immediate supervisor shall give a decision or response.

35.8 FORMAL GRIEVANCE - STEP 1 -

35.8.1 If an informal grievance is not resolved to the satisfaction of the grievant, or if there is reason to bypass the informal step, a formal grievance may be initiated. A formal grievance may be initiated no later than:

- **35.8.1.1** Ten (10) workdays after the event or circumstances occasioning the grievance; or
- 35.8.1.2 Ten (10) workdays of the decision rendered in the informal grievance procedure.
- 35.8.1.3 A formal grievance shall be initiated in writing and shall be filed with the persons designated by the appointing authority as the first level of appeal. The grievant may be represented by the Association representative.
- **35.8.1.4** Within ten (10) workdays after the initiation of the formal grievance, the designee of the appointing authority at the first level of appeal shall investigate the grievance, and give a decision in writing to the grievant.
- **35.9 FORMAL GRIEVANCE STEP 2 -** If the grievant is not satisfied with the decision rendered pursuant to Step 1, the grievant may appeal the decision within ten (10) workdays to the Chief of Police or designee. The grievant may be represented by the Association or designee. If the appointing authority or designee is the first level of appeal, the grievant may bypass Step 2.
 - 35.9.1 Within ten (10) workdays after the initiation of the Step 2, the designee of the appointing authority at the first level of appeal shall investigate the grievance, and give a decision in writing to the grievant.
- **35.10 FORMAL GRIEVANCE STEP 3 -** If the grievant is not satisfied with the decision rendered pursuant to Step 2, the grievant may appeal the decision within ten (10) workdays to the City Administrator. The Association or designee may represent the grievant.
 - 35.10.1The City Administrator or designee shall schedule a mutually agreeable time to hear the grievance, which shall be within ten (10) workdays of the receipt of the grievance. The City Administrator or designated representative shall respond in writing to the grievance within ten (10) workdays following the grievance hearing.
- 35.11 ADVISORY ARBITRATION STEP 4 If the City Administrator or designee fails to respond in writing as provided in Step 3, or if the response is not satisfactory to the grievant, the Association shall have the right to refer the matter to advisory arbitration. Such referral shall be made by written demand submitted to the City Administrator within ten (10) workdays of receipt of the Step 3 decision.
 - **35.12 RESPONSE** If the City fails to respond to a grievance within the time limits specified for that step, the grievant shall have the right to appeal to the next step.
 - 35.13 COPY OF DECISION At each step of the formal grievance procedure, a copy of the decision shall be sent to the Association at the same time as the decision is sent to the grievant.

- **35.14 ASSIGNMENT OF AN ARBITRATOR** An arbitrator shall be selected jointly by the parties within ten (10) workdays of receipt of the written demand. In the event the parties are unable to agree on an arbitrator within the time stated, the parties shall solicit from the State of California Mediation/Conciliation Service a list of seven (7) arbitrators. The parties shall alternately strike one name from this list and the remaining name shall be the selected arbitrator.
- **35.15 FINDINGS** The arbitrator shall submit his/her findings and recommendations in writing to the City and the grievant. **35.16 CITY COUNCIL REVIEW**
 - 1. The City Council may approve, modify or reverse the findings of the arbitrator and its decision shall be final.
 - 2. Any decision rendered by the City Council shall be made within twenty-eight (28) calendar days of the receipt of a request, unless extended by the City Council, but in no event more than 45 calendar days.
- 35.16 COSTS The fees and expenses of the arbitrator and the court reporter, if required by the arbitrator or requested by a party, shall be shared equally by the parties. The parties shall bear their own witness fees; however, OPOA shall not be charged any ,witness fees for City employees
- **35.17 WITNESSES** The City agrees that employees shall not suffer loss of compensation for time spent as a witness at an advisory arbitration hearing held pursuant to the Agreement. The Association agrees that the number of witnesses requested to attend and their scheduling shall be reasonable.

ARTICLE 36 - CODE OF ETHICS

36.1 OPOA-Non-Sworn members shall abide by the Code of Ethics attached hereto as Exhibit "B".

ARTICLE 37 - PEACEFUL PERFORMANCE

37.1 The City and the OPOA recognize and acknowledge that the services performed by the employees covered by this Memorandum are essential to the public health, safety, and general welfare of the residents of this jurisdiction. The OPOA agrees that under no circumstances during the term of this agreement will the OPOA, recommend, encourage, cause or permit its employees to initiate, recognize, participate in, nor will any employee of the bargaining unit take part in any strike, sit-down, stay-in, sick-out, slow-down, or picketing related to labor relations matters (thereinafter collectively referred to as work stoppage), in any office or department of this jurisdiction nor to curtail any work or restrict any production, or interfere with any operation of the City. In the event of any such work stoppage by any employee of the bargaining unit, the City shall not be required to negotiate on the merits of any dispute, which may have given rise to such work stoppage

until said stoppage has ceased.

ARTICLE 38 - SAVINGS CLAUSE

38.1 Should any portion of this Memorandum or any provisions herein contained be rendered or declared invalid by reason of existing or subsequently enacted legislation or by decree of a competent jurisdiction, such invalidation of such portion of this Memorandum shall not invalidate the remaining portions hereof, and they shall remain in full force and effect.

ARTICLE 39 - ZIPPER CLAUSE

39.1 This Memorandum constitutes the whole agreement between the City of Oroville and the OPOA. There exists no other agreements or inducements written or oral, other than those expressly provided herein.

Except for emergencies as provided for under California Code Section 3504.5 et seq, the parties mutually agree that during the term of this Memorandum, they will not seek to negotiate or bargain with wages, hours, and terms and conditions of employment whether or not covered by this Memorandum or in negotiations leading thereto and irrespective of whether or not such matters were discussed or were even within the contemplation of the City and the OPOA hereto during the negotiations leading to this Memorandum. Regardless of the waiver contained in this section, the City and the OPOA may, by mutual agreement, in writing, agree to meet and confer about any matter during the term of this Memorandum.

ARTICLE 40 - TERM AND OPENING CLAUSE

40.1 This Memorandum of Understanding shall be effective February 19, 2019 and shall remain in effect through June 30, 2022 and shall continue thereafter unless either party gives written notice requesting negotiation of a new Memorandum of Understanding.

The MOU is subject to being reopened if the PERS Employer's Cost rise above 19%. If the MOU is reopened, parties will agree on a neutral third party to do a financial analysis regarding the City's finances. The City will pay the first \$10,000 of costs for the analysis, and the remainder will be shared by the City and Employees.

ARTICLE 41 - TOTAL COMPENSATION SURVEY

41.1 If by January 1, 2016, the City's general fund revenue has increased by 10% or more, the City will undertake a total compensation survey, looking at comparable jurisdictions, and, if the City finds that employee compensation is over 5% lower than the comparable jurisdictions, the City will begin discussions to create a corrective plan to correct the discrepancy. General fund revenue will be defined as

Core Revenues, which included property tax, sales and use tax, transient occupancy tax, utility user tax, franchise tax, and motor vehicle in lieu.

This memorandum recommended to the City Council of the City of Oroville on May 21, 2019.

| DROVILLE POLICE OFFICER'S | CITY OF OROVILLE |
|---------------------------|---|
| Joe Deal, OPOA President | Thomas Lando, Interim City Administrator |
| Shaun Du Fosee, Mastagni | Approved as to form: |
| | Scott E. Huber, City Attorney |
| | Executed by: |
| | Charles E Poynolds Mayor |

Classifications & Compensation for OPOA Members (Sworn and Non-Sworn Units)

TABLE 19/EFFECTIVE: 02/19/19 SALARY SCHEDULE EXHIBIT "A"

| | | | swoi | RN | | and the state of t | ing the second second | |
|--------------------------|-------------|-------------|-------------|-------------|-------------|--|-----------------------|-------------|
| CLASSIFICATION: | STEP A | STEP B | STEP C | STEP D | STEP E | STEP F | STEP G | STEP H |
| Sergeant | \$63,463.47 | \$66,636.64 | \$69,968.48 | \$73,466.90 | \$77,140.24 | \$80,997.26 | \$85,047.12 | \$89,299.48 |
| | \$5,288.62 | \$5,553.05 | \$5,830.71 | \$6,122.24 | \$6,428.35 | | \$7,087.26 | \$7,441.62 |
| | \$30.51128 | \$32.03685 | \$33.63869 | \$35.32062 | \$37.08666 | | \$40.88804 | \$42.93244 |
| Rotational Detective/OIC | \$53,265.38 | \$55,928.65 | \$58,725.08 | \$61,661.34 | \$64,744.40 | \$67,981.62 | \$71,380.70 | \$74,949.74 |
| 5% Above Police Officer | \$4,438.78 | \$4,660.72 | \$4,893.76 | \$5,138.44 | \$5,395.37 | | \$5,948.39 | \$6,245.81 |
| | \$25.60836 | \$26.88877 | \$28.23321 | \$29.64487 | \$31.12712 | \$32.68347 | \$34.31765 | \$36.03353 |
| Police Officer | \$50,728.93 | \$53,265.38 | \$55,928.65 | \$58,725.08 | \$61,661.33 | \$64,744.40 | \$67,981.62 | \$71,380.70 |
| | \$4,227.41 | \$4,438.78 | \$4,660.72 | \$4,893.76 | \$5,138.44 | \$5,395.37 | \$5,665.13 | \$5,948.39 |
| | \$24.38891 | \$25.60835 | \$26.88877 | \$28.23321 | \$29.64487 | \$31.12711 | \$32.68347 | \$34.31764 |
| Reserve Police Officer | \$24.38891 | \$25.60835 | \$26.88877 | \$28.23321 | \$29.64487 | \$31.12711 | \$32.68347 | \$34.31764 |
| Reserve Investigator | \$25.00000 | | | | | | | |
| | | NO. | ON-SWORN | 智量的。可能分割 | | | | - |
| CLASSIFICATION: | STEP A | STEP B | STEP C | STEP D | STEP E | STEP F | STEP G | |
| Police Admin. Assistant | \$36,759.52 | \$38,597.50 | \$40,527.37 | \$42,553.74 | \$44,681.43 | \$46,915.50 | \$49,261.27 | |
| | \$3,063.29 | \$3,216.46 | \$3,377.28 | \$3,546.14 | \$3,723.45 | \$3,909.62 | \$4,105.11 | |
| | \$17.67285 | \$18.55649 | \$19.48431 | \$20.45853 | \$21.48145 | \$22.55553 | \$23.68330 | |
| Police Dispatcher | \$36,816.52 | \$38,657.35 | \$40,590.21 | \$42,619.72 | \$44,750.71 | \$46,988.25 | | |
| | \$3,068.04 | \$3,221.45 | \$3,382.52 | \$3,551.64 | \$3,729.23 | \$3,915.69 | \$4,111.47 | |
| | \$17.70025 | \$18.58526 | \$19.51453 | \$20.49025 | \$21.51476 | \$22.59050 | \$23.72003 | |
| MLE | \$32,730.58 | \$34,367.11 | \$36,085.46 | \$37,889.74 | \$39,784.22 | \$41,773.44 | \$43,862.11 | |
| | \$2,727.55 | \$2,863.93 | \$3,007.12 | \$3,157.48 | \$3,315.35 | \$3,481.12 | \$3,655.18 | |
| | \$15.73586 | \$16.52265 | \$17.34878 | \$18.21622 | \$19.12703 | \$20.08338 | \$21.08755 | |
| Police Records Techician | \$30,803.99 | \$32,344.19 | \$33,961.40 | \$35,659.47 | \$37,442.44 | \$39,314.56 | | |
| | \$2,567.00 | \$2,695.35 | \$2,830.12 | \$2,971.62 | \$3,120.20 | \$3,276.21 | \$3,440.02 | |
| | \$14.80961 | \$15.55009 | \$16.32760 | \$17.14398 | \$18.00117 | \$18.90123 | \$19.84629 | |

Classifications & Compensation for OPOA Members (Sworn and Non-Sworn Units) 07/01/19 SALARY SCHEDULE

TABLE 19/EFFECTIVE: 07/01/19

EXHIBIT "A"

| | | | SWO | RN | | | in the second se | angan di |
|--------------------------|-------------|-------------|-------------|-------------|-------------|-------------|--|--|
| CLASSIFICATION: | STEP A | STEP B | STEP C | STEP D | STEP E | STEP F | STEP G | STEP H |
| Sergeant | \$66,002.01 | \$69,302.11 | \$72,767.21 | \$76,405.58 | \$80,225.85 | \$84,237.15 | \$88,449.00 | \$92,871.45 |
| | \$5,500.17 | \$5,775.18 | \$6,063.93 | \$6,367.13 | \$6,685.49 | \$7,019.76 | \$7,370.75 | \$7,739.29 |
| | \$31.73174 | \$33.31832 | \$34.98424 | \$36.73345 | \$38.57012 | \$40.49863 | \$42.52356 | \$44.64974 |
| Rotational Detective/OIC | \$55,396.00 | \$58,165.79 | \$61,074.08 | \$64,127.79 | \$67,334.18 | \$70,700.89 | \$74,235.93 | \$77,947.73 |
| 5% Above Police Officer | \$4,616.33 | \$4,847.15 | \$5,089.51 | \$5,343.98 | \$5,611.18 | \$5,891.74 | \$6,186.33 | \$6,495.64 |
| | \$26.63269 | \$27.96432 | \$29.36254 | \$30.83067 | \$32.37220 | \$33.99081 | \$35.69035 | \$37.47487 |
| Police Officer | \$52,758.09 | \$55,395.99 | \$58,165.79 | \$61,074.08 | \$64,127.78 | \$67,334.17 | \$70,700.88 | \$74,235.93 |
| | \$4,396.51 | \$4,616.33 | \$4,847.15 | \$5,089.51 | \$5,343.98 | \$5,611.18 | \$5,891.74 | \$6,186.33 |
| | \$25.36447 | \$26.63269 | \$27.96432 | \$29.36254 | \$30.83067 | \$32.37220 | \$33.99081 | \$35.69035 |
| Reserve Police Officer | \$25.36447 | \$26.63269 | \$27.96432 | \$29.36254 | \$30.83067 | \$32.37220 | \$33.99081 | \$35.69035 |
| Reserve Investigator | \$25.00000 | | | | | | | |
| | | N | ON-SWORN | | | | | |
| CLASSIFICATION: | STEP A | STEP B | STEP C | STEP D | STEP E | STEP F | STEP G | |
| Police Admin. Assistant | \$38,229.90 | \$40,141.40 | \$42,148.47 | \$44,255.89 | \$46,468.68 | \$48,792.12 | \$51,231.72 | |
| | \$3,185.83 | \$3,345.12 | \$3,512.37 | \$3,687.99 | \$3,872.39 | \$4,066.01 | \$4,269.31 | |
| | \$18.37976 | \$19.29875 | \$20.26369 | \$21.27687 | \$22.34071 | \$23.45775 | \$24.63064 | |
| Police Dispatcher | \$38,289.18 | \$40,203.64 | \$42,213.82 | \$44,324.51 | \$46,540.74 | \$48,867.78 | \$51,311.16 | |
| | \$3,190.77 | \$3,350.30 | \$3,517.82 | \$3,693.71 | \$3,878.39 | \$4,072.31 | \$4,275.93 | |
| | \$18.40826 | \$19.32867 | \$20.29511 | \$21.30986 | \$22.37536 | \$23.49412 | \$24.66883 | |
| MLE | \$34,039.80 | \$35,741.79 | \$37,528.88 | \$39,405.33 | \$41,375.59 | \$43,444.37 | \$45,616.59 | |
| | \$2,836.65 | \$2,978.48 | \$3,127.41 | \$3,283.78 | \$3,447.97 | \$3,620.36 | \$3,801.38 | |
| | \$16.36529 | \$17.18355 | \$18.04273 | \$18.94487 | \$19.89211 | \$20.88672 | \$21.93105 | |
| Police Records Techician | \$32,036.15 | \$33,637.96 | \$35,319.85 | \$37,085.85 | \$38,940.14 | \$40,887.15 | \$42,931.50 | |
| | \$2,669.68 | \$2,803.16 | \$2,943.32 | \$3,090.49 | \$3,245.01 | \$3,407.26 | \$3,577.63 | ! |
| | \$15.40200 | \$16.17209 | \$16.98070 | \$17.82973 | \$18.72122 | \$19.65728 | \$20.64015 | |

Classifications & Compensation for OPOA Members (Sworn and Non-Sworn Units)

TABLE 19/EFFECTIVE: 07/01/20

SALARY SCHEDULE

EXHIBIT "A"

| SWORN | | | | | | | | | | | | | |
|--------------------------|-------------|-------------|-------------|-------------|-------------|-------------|-------------|-------------|--|--|--|--|--|
| CLASSIFICATION: | STEP A | STEP B | STEP C | STEP D | STEP E | STEP F | STEP G | STEP H | | | | | |
| Sergeant | \$68,642.09 | \$72,074.19 | \$75,677.90 | \$79,461.80 | \$83,434.89 | \$87,606.63 | \$91,986.97 | \$96,586.31 | | | | | |
| | \$5,720.17 | \$6,006.18 | \$6,306.49 | \$6,621.82 | \$6,952.91 | \$7,300.55 | \$7,665.58 | \$8,048.86 | | | | | |
| | \$33.00101 | \$34.65106 | \$36.38361 | \$38.20279 | \$40.11293 | \$42.11857 | \$44.22450 | \$46.43573 | | | | | |
| Rotational Detective/OIC | \$57,611.84 | \$60,492.43 | \$63,517.05 | \$66,692.91 | \$70,027.55 | \$73,528.93 | \$77,205.38 | \$81,065.64 | | | | | |
| 5% Above Police Officer | \$4,800.99 | \$5,041.04 | \$5,293.09 | \$5,557.74 | \$5,835.63 | \$6,127.41 | \$6,433.78 | \$6,755.47 | | | | | |
| | \$27.69800 | \$29.08290 | \$30.53705 | \$32.06390 | \$33.66709 | \$35.35045 | \$37.11797 | \$38.97387 | | | | | |
| Police Officer | \$54,868.41 | \$57,611.83 | \$60,492.43 | \$63,517.05 | \$66,692.90 | \$70,027.54 | \$73,528.92 | \$77,205.37 | | | | | |
| | \$4,572.37 | \$4,800.99 | \$5,041.04 | \$5,293.09 | \$5,557.74 | \$5,835.63 | \$6,127:41 | \$6,433.78 | | | | | |
| | \$26.37905 | \$27.69800 | \$29.08290 | \$30.53704 | \$32.06389 | \$33.66709 | \$35.35044 | \$37.11797 | | | | | |
| Reserve Police Officer | \$26.37905 | \$27.69800 | \$29.08290 | \$30.53704 | \$32.06389 | \$33.66709 | \$35.35044 | \$37.11797 | | | | | |
| Reserve Investigator | \$25.00000 | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| | | New York | ON-SWORN | | | | A1214 | - | | | | | |
| CLASSIFICATION: | STEP A | STEP B | STEP C | STEP D | STEP E | STEP F | STEP G | | | | | | |
| Police Admin. Assistant | \$39,759.10 | \$41,747.05 | \$43,834.40 | \$46,026,12 | \$48,327,43 | \$50,743.80 | \$53,280.99 | | | | | | |
| | \$3,313.26 | \$3,478.92 | \$3,652.87 | \$3,835.51 | \$4,027.29 | \$4,228.65 | \$4,440.08 | | | | | | |
| | \$19.11495 | \$20.07070 | \$21.07423 | \$22.12794 | \$23.23434 | \$24.39606 | \$25.61586 | | | | | | |
| Police Dispatcher | \$39,820.75 | \$41,811.78 | \$43,902.37 | \$46,097,49 | \$48,402.37 | \$50,822.49 | \$53,363.61 | | | | | | |
| | \$3,318.40 | \$3,484.32 | \$3,658.53 | \$3,841.46 | \$4,033.53 | \$4,235.21 | \$4,446.97 | | | | | | |
| | \$19.14459 | \$20.10182 | \$21.10691 | \$22.16226 | \$23.27037 | \$24.43389 | \$25.65558 | | | | | | |
| MLE | \$35,401.39 | \$37,171.46 | \$39,030.03 | \$40,981.54 | \$43,030.61 | \$45,182.14 | \$47,441.25 | | | | | | |
| | \$2,950.12 | \$3,097.62 | \$3,252.50 | \$3,415.13 | \$3,585.88 | \$3,765.18 | \$3,953.44 | | | | | | |
| | \$17.01990 | \$17.87090 | \$18.76444 | \$19.70266 | \$20.68779 | \$21.72218 | \$22.80829 | | | | | | |
| Police Records Techician | \$33,317.60 | \$34,983.48 | \$36,732.65 | \$38,569.28 | \$40,497.75 | | \$44,648.77 | | | | | | |
| | \$2,776.47 | \$2,915.29 | \$3,061.05 | \$3,214.11 | \$3,374.81 | \$3,543.55 | \$3,720.73 | | | | | | |
| | \$16.01808 | \$16.81898 | \$17.65993 | \$18.54292 | \$19.47007 | \$20.44357 | \$21.46575 | | | | | | |

Classifications & Compensation for OPOA Members (Sworn and Non-Sworn Units)

TABLE 19/EFFECTIVE: 07/01/21

SALARY SCHEDULE

EXHIBIT "A"

| | | Si B. Heriy | SWO | RN | yan en irollogulali | | | Maria e Maria de la comoción |
|--------------------------|-------------|-------------|-------------|-------------|---------------------|-------------|-------------|---------------------------------|
| CLASSIFICATION: | STEP A | STEP B | STEP C | STEP D | STEP E | STEP F | STEP G | STEP H |
| Sergeant | \$71,387.77 | \$74,957.16 | \$78,705.02 | \$82,640.27 | \$86,772.28 | \$91,110.90 | \$95,666.44 | \$100,449.77 |
| | \$5,948.98 | \$6,246.43 | \$6,558.75 | \$6,886.69 | \$7,231.02 | \$7,592.57 | \$7,972.20 | \$8,370.81 |
| | \$34.32105 | \$36.03710 | \$37.83895 | \$39.73090 | \$41.71744 | \$43.80332 | \$45.99348 | \$48.29316 |
| Rotational Detective/OIC | \$59,916.31 | \$62,912.13 | \$66,057.74 | \$69,360.62 | \$72,828.65 | \$76,470.09 | \$80,293.59 | \$84,308.27 |
| 5% Above Police Officer | \$4,993.03 | \$5,242.68 | \$5,504.81 | \$5,780.05 | \$6,069.05 | \$6,372.51 | \$6,691.13 | \$7,025.69 |
| | \$28.80592 | \$30.24622 | \$31.75853 | \$33.34645 | \$35.01378 | \$36.76446 | \$38.60269 | \$40.53282 |
| Police Officer | \$57,063.15 | \$59,916.30 | \$62,912.12 | \$66,057.72 | \$69,360.61 | \$72,828.64 | \$76,470.07 | \$80,293.58 |
| | \$4,755.26 | \$4,993.03 | \$5,242.68 | \$5,504.81 | \$5,780.05 | \$6,069.05 | \$6,372.51 | \$6,691.13 |
| | \$27.43421 | \$28.80592 | \$30.24621 | \$31.75852 | \$33.34645 | \$35.01377 | \$36.76446 | \$38.60268 |
| Reserve Police Officer | \$27.43421 | \$28.80592 | \$30.24621 | \$31.75852 | \$33.34645 | \$35.01377 | \$36.76446 | \$38.60268 |
| Reserve Investigator | \$25.00000 | | | | | | | |
| | | N | ON-SWORN | | | | | |
| CLASSIFICATION: | STEP A | STEP B | STEP C | STEP D | STEP E | STEP F | STEP G | |
| Police Admin. Assistant | \$41,349.46 | \$43,416.94 | \$45,587.78 | \$47,867.17 | \$50,260.53 | \$52,773.56 | \$55,412.24 | |
| | \$3,445.79 | \$3,618.08 | \$3,798.98 | \$3,988.93 | \$4,188.38 | \$4,397.80 | \$4,617.69 | |
| | \$19.87955 | \$20.87353 | \$21.91720 | \$23.01306 | \$24.16372 | \$25.37190 | \$26.64050 | |
| Police Dispatcher | \$41,413.58 | \$43,484.26 | \$45,658.47 | \$47,941.40 | \$50,338.47 | \$52,855.39 | \$55,498.16 | |
| | \$3,451.13 | \$3,623.69 | \$3,804.87 | \$3,995.12 | \$4,194.87 | \$4,404.62 | \$4,624.85 | |
| | \$19.91038 | \$20.90589 | \$21.95119 | \$23.04875 | \$24.20119 | \$25.41124 | \$26.68181 | |
| MLE | \$36,817.45 | \$38,658.32 | \$40,591.23 | \$42,620.80 | \$44,751.84 | \$46,989.43 | \$49,338.90 | |
| | \$3,068.12 | \$3,221.53 | \$3,382.60 | \$3,551.73 | \$3,729.32 | \$3,915.79 | \$4,111.57 | |
| | \$17.70070 | \$18.58573 | \$19.51502 | \$20.49077 | \$21.51531 | \$22.59107 | \$23.72062 | |
| Police Records Techician | \$34,650.30 | \$36,382.82 | \$38,201.96 | \$40,112.06 | \$42,117.66 | \$44,223.54 | \$46,434.72 | |
| | \$2,887.53 | \$3,031.90 | \$3,183.50 | \$3,342.67 | \$3,509.81 | \$3,685.30 | \$3,869.56 | |
| | \$16.65880 | \$17.49174 | \$18.36633 | \$19.28464 | \$20.24888 | \$21.26132 | \$22.32439 | |

Classifications & Compensation for OPOA Members (Sworn and Non-Sworn Units) 2nd Tier 2.5% Steps SALARY SCHEDULE

TABLE 19/EFFECTIVE: 02/19/19

EYLIBIT "B"

| TABLE 19/EFFECTIVE: UZI | 19/19 | | | SALARY SCHEDULE | | | | | | | | | E | XHIBIT "B" | |
|--------------------------|-------------|-------------|-------------|-----------------|-------------|-------------|-------------|--|-----------------|-------------|-------------------------------|-----------------------|----------------|-------------|-------------|
| | 1 84.50 | 1 | San Timber | | - 94A - C | 1.00 | SWORN | <u> Markindan</u> | Day 17 of Fifty | Barasan e | Albiyle (iserie) | | | | |
| CLASSIFICATION: | STEP A | STEP B | STEP C | STEP D | STEP E | STEP F | STEP G | STEP H | STEP I | STEP J | STEP K | STEP L | STEP M | STEP N | STEP 0 |
| Sergeant | \$63,463.47 | \$65,050.06 | \$66,636.64 | \$68,302.56 | \$69,968.48 | \$71,717.69 | \$73,466.90 | \$75,303.57 | \$77,140.24 | \$79,068.75 | \$80,997.26 | \$83,022.19 | \$85,047.12 | \$87,173.30 | \$89,299.48 |
| | \$5,288.62 | \$5,420.84 | \$5,553.05 | \$5,691.88 | \$5,830.71 | \$5,976.47 | \$6,122.24 | \$6,275.30 | \$6,428.35 | \$6,589.06 | \$6,749.77 | \$6,918.52 | \$7,087.26 | \$7,264.44 | \$7,441.62 |
| | \$30.51128 | \$31.27407 | \$32.03685 | \$32.83777 | \$33.63869 | \$34.47966 | \$35.32062 | \$36.20364 | \$37.08666 | \$38.01382 | \$38.94099 | \$39.91451 | \$40.88804 | \$41.91024 | \$42.93244 |
| Rotational Detective/OIC | \$53,265.38 | \$54,597.01 | \$55,928.65 | \$57,326.87 | \$58,725.08 | \$60,193.21 | \$61,661.34 | \$63,202.87 | \$64,744.40 | \$66,363.01 | \$67,981.62 | \$69,681.16 | \$71,380.70 | \$73,165.22 | \$74,949.74 |
| 5% Above Police Officer | \$4,438.78 | \$4,549.75 | \$4,660.72 | \$4,777.24 | \$4,893.76 | \$5,016.10 | \$5,138.44 | \$5,266.91 | \$5,395.37 | \$5,530.25 | \$5,665.14 | \$5,806.76 | \$5,948.39 | \$6,097.10 | \$6,245.81 |
| | \$25.60836 | \$26.24856 | \$26.88877 | \$27.56099 | \$28.23321 | \$28.93904 | \$29.64487 | \$30.38599 | \$31.12712 | \$31.90529 | \$32.68347 | \$33.50056 | \$34.31765 | \$35.17559 | \$36.03353 |
| Police Officer | \$50,728.93 | \$51,997.15 | \$53,265.38 | \$54,597.01 | \$55,928.65 | \$57,326.86 | \$58,725.08 | \$60,193.20 | \$61,661.33 | \$63,202.86 | \$64,744.40 | \$66,363.01 | \$67,981.62 | \$69,681.16 | \$71,380.70 |
| | \$4,227.41 | \$4,333.10 | \$4,438.78 | \$4,549.75 | \$4,660.72 | \$4,777.24 | \$4,893.76 | \$5,016.10 | \$5,138.44 | \$5,266.91 | \$5,395.37 | \$5,530.25 | \$5,665.13 | \$5,806.76 | \$5,948.39 |
| | \$24.38891 | \$24.99863 | \$25.60835 | \$26.24856 | \$26.88877 | \$27.56099 | \$28.23321 | \$28.93904 | \$29.64487 | \$30.38599 | \$31.12711 | \$31.90529 | \$32.68347 | \$33.50056 | \$34.31764 |
| Reserve Police Officer | \$24.38891 | \$24.99863 | \$25.60836 | \$26.24856 | \$26.88877 | \$27.56099 | \$28.23321 | \$28.93904 | \$29.64487 | \$30.38599 | \$31.12712 | \$31.90529 | \$32.68347 | \$33.50056 | \$34.31765 |
| Reserve Investigator | \$25.00000 | | - | | | | | | | | | • | | | |
| | | | | ingranica . | | ON-SWORN | | ###################################### | | | ig i eg maticaties | hi ukima tim i | galaja, malaja | | l |
| CLASSIFICATION: | STEP A | STEP B | STEP C | STEP D | STEP E | STEP F | STEP G | STEP H | STEP | STEP J | STEP K | STEP L | STEP M | 1 | |
| Police Admin. Assistant | \$36,759.52 | \$37,678.51 | \$38,597.50 | \$39,562.43 | \$40,527.37 | \$41,540.56 | \$42,553.74 | \$43,617.58 | \$44,681:43 | \$45,798.46 | \$46,915.50 | \$48,088.39 | \$49,261.27 | 1 | |
| | \$3,063.29 | \$3,139.88 | \$3,216.46 | \$3,296.87 | \$3,377.28 | \$3,461.71 | \$3,546.14 | \$3,634.80 | \$3,723.45 | \$3,816.54 | \$3,909.62 | \$4,007.37 | \$4,105,11 | 1 | |
| | \$17.67285 | \$18.11467 | \$18.55649 | \$19.02040 | \$19.48431 | \$19.97142 | \$20.45853 | \$20.96999 | \$21.48145 | \$22.01849 | \$22.55553 | \$23.11942 | \$23,68330 | 1 | |
| Police Dispatcher | \$36,816.52 | \$37,736.93 | \$38,657.35 | \$39,623.78 | \$40,590.21 | \$41,604.97 | \$42,619.72 | \$43,685.22 | \$44,750,71. | \$45,869.48 | \$46,988,25 | \$48,162.95 | \$49,337.66 | 1 | |
| | \$3,068.04 | \$3,144.74 | \$3,221.45 | \$3,301.98 | \$3,382.52 | \$3,467.08 | \$3,551.64 | \$3,640.43 | \$3,729.23 | \$3,822.46 | \$3,915.69 | \$4,013.58 | \$4,111,47 | 1 | |
| | \$17.70025 | \$18.14276 | \$18.58526 | \$19.04989 | \$19.51453 | \$20.00239 | \$20.49025 | \$21.00251 | \$21.51476 | \$22.05263 | \$22.59050 | \$23.15527 | \$23,72003 | 1 | |
| MLE | \$32,730.58 | \$33,548.84 | \$34,367.11 | \$35,226.29 | \$36,085.46 | \$36,987.60 | \$37,889.74 | \$38,836.98 | \$39,784.22 | \$40,778.83 | \$41,773.44 | \$42,817.77 | \$43,862,11 | 1 | |
| | \$2,727.55 | \$2,795.74 | \$2,863.93 | \$2,935.52 | \$3,007.12 | \$3,082.30 | \$3,157.48 | \$3,236.42 | \$3,315.35 | \$3,398.24 | \$3,481.12 | \$3,568.15 | \$3,655,18 | | |
| | \$15.7359 | \$16.1293 | \$16.5226 | \$16.9357 | \$17.3488 | \$17.7825 | \$18.2162 | \$18.6716 | \$19.1270 | \$19.6052 | \$20.0834 | \$20.5855 | \$21.0876 | 1 | |
| Police Records Techician | \$30,803.99 | \$31,574.09 | \$32,344.19 | \$33,152.79 | \$33,961.40 | \$34,810.43 | \$35,659.47 | \$36,550.96 | \$37,442.44 | \$38,378.50 | \$39,314.56 | | \$41,280.29 | | |
| | \$2,567.00 | \$2,631.17 | \$2,695.35 | \$2,762.73 | \$2,830.12 | \$2,900.87 | \$2,971.62 | \$3,045.91 | \$3,120.20 | \$3,198.21 | \$3,276.21 | \$3,358.12 | \$3,440.02 | | |
| | \$14.8096 | \$15.1799 | \$15.5501 | \$15.9388 | \$16.3276 | \$16,7358 | \$17,1440 | \$17.5726 | \$18,0012 | \$18,4512 | \$18.9012 | \$19.3738 | \$19.8463 | 1 | |

Classifications & Compensation for OPOA Members (Sworn and Non-Sworn Units) 2nd Tier 2.5% Steps

TABLE 19/EFFECTIVE: 02/19/19 **SALARY SCHEDULE EXHIBIT "B"** SWORN CLASSIFICATION: STEP A STEP B STEP C STEP D STEP E STEP F STEP G STEP I STEP J STEP K STEP H STEP L STEP M STEP N STEP O \$66,002.01 | \$67,652.06 | \$69,302.11 | \$71,034.66 | \$72,767.21 | \$74,586.40 | \$76,405.58 Sergeant \$78,315.71 | \$80,225.85 | \$82,231.50 | \$84,237.15 \$86,343.08 \$88,449.00 \$90,660.23 \$92,871.45 \$5,500.17 | \$5,637.67 | \$5,775.18 | \$5,919.56 | \$6,063.93 \$6,215.53 \$6,367.13 \$6,526.31 \$6,685.49 \$6,852.63 \$7,019.76 \$7,195.26 \$7,370.75 \$7,555.02 \$7,739.29 \$31.73174 | \$32.52503 | \$33.31832 | \$34.15128 \$34.98424 \$35.85884 \$36.73345 | \$37.65179 | \$38.57012 \$39.53438 \$40.49863 \$43.58665 \$44.64974 \$41.51109 \$42.52356 Rotational Detective/OIC \$55,396.00 | \$56,780.90 | \$58,165.79 | \$59,619.94 \$61,074.08 \$62,600.94 \$64,127.79 | \$65,730.98 | \$67,334.18 | \$69,017.53 | \$70,700.89 | \$72,468.41 | \$74,235.93 | \$76,091.83 | \$77,947.73 5% Above Police Officer \$4,616.33 \$4,731.74 \$4,847.15 \$4,968.33 \$5,089.51 \$5,216.74 \$5,343.98 \$5,477.58 \$5,611.18 \$5,751.46 \$5,891.74 \$6,039.03 \$6,186.33 \$6,340.99 \$6,495.64 \$26.63269 | \$27.29851 | \$27.96432 \$28.66343 \$29.36254 \$30.09660 \$31.60143 | \$32.37220 | \$33.18151 \$30.83067 \$33.99081 \$34.84058 \$35.69035 \$36.58261 \$37.47487 \$52,758.09 \$54,077.04 \$55,395.99 \$56,780.89 Police Officer \$58,165.79 | \$59,619.94 | \$61,074.08 | \$62,600.93 | \$64,127.78 | \$65,730.98 \$67,334.17 \$69,017.53 \$70,700.88 \$72,468.40 \$74,235.93 \$4,396.51 \$4,506.42 \$4,616.33 \$4,731.74 \$4,847.15 \$4,968.33 \$5,089.51 \$5,216.74 \$5,343.98 \$5,477.58 \$5,611.18 \$5,751.46 \$5,891.74 \$6,039.03 \$6,186.33 \$25.36447 \$25.99858 \$26.63269 \$27.29851 \$27.96432 \$28.66343 \$29.36254 \$30.09660 \$30.83067 \$31.60143 \$32.37220 | \$33.18150 | \$33.99081 \$34.84058 \$35,69035 \$25.36447 | \$25.99858 | \$26.63269 Reserve Police Officer \$27.29851 \$27.96432 \$28.66343 | \$29.36254 | \$30.09660 \$30.83067 | \$31.60143 | \$32.37220 | \$33.18150 | \$33.99081 \$34.84058 \$35.69035 Reserve Investigator \$25.00000

| | | | | Albeit at a thomas nes | | ION-SWORN | leak d'out de reidle | | | | | | |
|--------------------------|-------------|-------------|-------------|------------------------|-------------|-------------|----------------------|-------------|-------------|-------------|-------------|-------------|-------------|
| CLASSIFICATION: | STEP A | STEP B | STEP C | STEP D | STEP E | STEP F | STEP G | STEP H | STEP I | | STEP K | | STEP M |
| Police Admin. Assistant | \$38,229.90 | \$39,185.65 | \$40,141.40 | \$41,144.93 | \$42,148.47 | \$43,202.18 | \$44,255.89 | \$45,362.29 | \$46,468.68 | \$47,630.40 | \$48,792.12 | \$50,011.92 | \$51,231.72 |
| | \$3,185.83 | | | | | | | | | | | \$4,167.66 | |
| | \$18.37976 | | | \$19.78122 | | | \$21.27687 | \$21.80879 | \$22.34071 | \$22.89923 | \$23.45775 | \$24.04419 | \$24.63064 |
| Police Dispatcher | \$38,289.18 | \$39,246.41 | \$40,203.64 | \$41,208.73 | \$42,213.82 | \$43,269.17 | \$44,324.51 | \$45,432.63 | \$46,540.74 | \$47,704.26 | \$48,867.78 | \$50,089.47 | \$51,311.16 |
| | \$3,190.77 | \$3,270.53 | \$3,350.30 | \$3,434.06 | \$3,517.82 | \$3,605.76 | \$3,693.71 | \$3,786.05 | \$3,878.39 | \$3,975.35 | \$4,072.31 | \$4,174.12 | \$4,275.93 |
| | \$18.40826 | | \$19.32867 | | | \$20.80248 | \$21.30986 | \$21.84261 | \$22.37536 | \$22.93474 | \$23.49412 | \$24.08148 | \$24.66883 |
| MLE | \$34,039.80 | \$34,890.80 | \$35,741.79 | \$36,635.34 | \$37,528.88 | \$38,467.11 | \$39,405,33 | \$40,390.46 | \$41,375.59 | \$42,409.98 | \$43,444.37 | \$44,530.48 | \$45,616.59 |
| | \$2,836.65 | \$2,907.57 | \$2,978.48 | \$3,052.94 | \$3,127.41 | \$3,205.59 | \$3,283.78 | \$3,365.87 | \$3,447.97 | \$3,534.17 | \$3,620.36 | \$3,710.87 | \$3,801.38 |
| | \$16.3653 | | | | \$18.0427 | | | | | \$20.3894 | | | \$21.9311 |
| Police Records Techlcian | \$32,036.15 | \$32,837.05 | \$33,637.96 | \$34,478.91 | \$35,319.85 | \$36,202.85 | \$37,085.85 | \$38,012.99 | \$38,940.14 | \$39,913.64 | \$40,887.15 | \$41,909.33 | \$42,931.50 |
| | \$2,669.68 | \$2,736.42 | \$2,803.16 | | \$2,943.32 | | | | | | | | \$3,577.63 |
| | \$15.4020 | \$15.7870 | \$16.1721 | \$16.5764 | \$16.9807 | \$17.4052 | \$17.8297 | \$18.2755 | \$18.7212 | \$19.1893 | \$19.6573 | \$20.1487 | \$20.6401 |

Classifications & Compensation for OPOA Members (Sworn and Non-Sworn Units) 2nd Tier 2.5% Steps

TABLE 19/EFFECTIVE: 07/01/20 SALARY SCHEDULE EXHIBIT "B" SWORN CLASSIFICATION: STEP A STEP B STEP C STEP D STEP E STEP F STEP G STEP H STEP I STEP J STEP K STEP L STEP M STEP N STEP O Sergeant \$68,642.09 \$70,358,14 \$72,074.19 \$73,876.05 \$75,677.90 \$77,569.85 \$79,461.80 \$81,448.34 \$83,434.89 \$85,520.76 \$87,606.63 \$89,796.80 \$91.986.97 \$94,286.64 \$96.586.31 \$5,720.17 \$5,863.18 \$6,006.18 \$6,156.34 \$6,787.36 \$7.857.22 \$8,048.86 \$6,306,49 \$6,464.15 \$6,621.82 \$6.952.91 \$7,126.73 \$7,300.55 \$7,483.07 \$7,665.58 \$33.00101 \$33.82603 \$34.65106 \$35.51733 \$36.38361 \$37.29320 \$38.20279 \$39.15786 \$40.11293 \$41.11575 \$42.11857 \$43.17154 \$44.22450 \$45.33012 \$46.43573 Rotational Detective/OIC \$57,611.84 \$59,052.14 \$60,492.43 \$62,004.74 \$63,517.05 \$65,104.98 \$66,692.91 \$68,360.23 \$70,027.55 \$71,778.24 \$73,528.93 \$75,367.15 \$77,205.38 \$79,135.51 \$81,065.64 \$6,594.63 % Above Police Officer \$4,800.99 \$4,921,01 \$5,041.04 \$5,167,06 \$5,293.09 \$5,425,41 \$5,557.74 \$5,696,69 \$5,835,63 \$5,981.52 \$6,127.41 \$6,280.60 \$6,433.78 \$6,755.47 \$27.69800 \$28.39045 \$29.08290 \$29.80997 \$30.53705 \$31,30047 \$32,06390 \$32,86549 \$33,66709 \$34.50877 \$35.35045 \$36.23421 \$37,11797 \$38.04592 \$38.97387 Police Officer \$54,868.41 \$56,240.12 \$57,611.83 \$59,052.13 \$60,492.43 \$62,004.74 \$63,517.05 \$65,104.97 \$66,692.90 \$68,360.22 \$70,027.54 \$71,778.23 \$73,528.92 \$75,367.14 \$77,205.37 \$4,572.37 \$4,686.68 \$4,800.99 \$4,921.01 \$5,041.04 \$5,167.06 \$5,293.09 \$5,425,41 \$5,557.74 \$5,696.69 \$5,835.63 \$5,981.52 \$6,127.41 \$6,280.60 \$6,433.78 \$26.37905 \$27.03852 \$27.69800 \$28,39045 \$29.08290 \$29.80997 \$30.53704 \$31.30047 \$32.86549 \$33.66709 \$34.50877 \$35.35044 \$36.23420 \$32.06389 \$37.11797 Reserve Police Officer \$26.37905 \$27.03852 \$27.69800 \$28.39045 \$29.08290 \$29.80997 \$30.53704 \$31.30047 \$32.06389 \$32.86549 \$33.66709 \$34.50877 \$35.35044 \$36.23420 \$37.11797 Reserve Investigator \$25.00000 NON-SWORN CLASSIFICATION: STEP A STEP B STEP C STEP D STEP E STEP F STEP G STEP H STEP I STEP J STEP K STEP L STEP M Police Admin. Assistant \$39,759.10 \$41,747.05 \$40,753.07 \$42,790.73 | \$43,834.40 | \$44,930.26 | \$46,026.12 \$47,176.78 \$48,327.43 \$49,535.62 \$50,743.80 \$52,012.40 | \$53,280.99 \$3.313.26 \$3,396.09 \$3,478,92 \$3,565,89 \$3.652.87 \$3,744.19 \$3,835.51 \$3,931.40 \$4,027.29 \$4,127.97 \$4,228.65 \$4.334.37 \$4,440.08 \$19.11495 \$19.59282 \$20.07070 \$20.57246 \$21.07423 \$21,60109 \$22,12794 \$22,68114 \$23,23434 \$23.81520 \$24.39606 \$25,00596 \$25,61586 Police Dispatcher \$39,820.75 | \$40,816.27 | \$41,811.78 \$42,857.08 \$43,902.37 \$44,999.93 \$46,097.49 \$47,249.93 | \$48,402.37 \$49,612.43 \$50,822.49 \$52,093.05 \$53,363.61 \$3,318.40 \$3,401.36 \$3,484.32 \$3,571.42 \$3,658.53 \$3,749.99 \$3,841.46 \$3,937.49 \$4,033.53 \$4,134.37 \$4,235.21 \$4,341.09 \$4,446.97 \$19.14459 \$19.62320 \$20.10182 \$20.60436 \$21.10691 \$21.63458 \$22.16226 \$22,71631 \$23.27037 \$23.85213 \$24,43389 \$25.04473 \$25.65558 MLE \$35,401.39 | \$36,286.43 | \$37,171.46 \$38,100.75 | \$39,030.03 \$40,005.79 \$40,981.54 \$42,006.07 \$43,030.61 \$44,106.38 \$45,182.14 \$46,311.70 \$47,441.25 \$2,950.12 \$3,023.87 \$3,097.62 \$3,175.06 \$3,252.50 \$3,333.82 \$3,415.13 \$3,500.51 \$3,585.88 \$3,675.53 \$3,765.18 \$3,859.31 \$3,953.44 \$17.0199 \$17.4454 \$17.8709 \$18.3177 \$18.7644 \$19.2336 \$19.7027 \$20.1952 \$20.6878 \$21.2050 \$21.7222 \$22.2652 \$22.8083

\$38,569.28

\$3,214.11

\$18.5429

\$39,533.51

\$3,294.46

\$19.0065

\$40,497.75

\$3,374.81

\$19.4701

\$41,510.19

\$3,459.18

\$19.9568

\$42,522.63

\$3,543.55

\$20.4436

\$43,585.70

\$3,632.14

\$20.9547

\$44,648.77

\$3,720.73

\$21.4658

\$37,650.97

\$3,137.58

\$18.1014

Police Records Techician

\$33,317.60 | \$34,150.54 | \$34,983.48

\$2,845.88

\$16.4185

\$2,915.29

\$16.8190

\$2,776.47

\$16.0181

\$35,858.06 \$36,732.65

\$3,061.05

\$17.6599

\$2,988.17

\$17.2395

Classifications & Compensation for OPOA Members (Sworn and Non-Sworn Units) 2nd Tier 2.5% Steps

TABLE 19/EFFECTIVE: 07/01/21

SALARY SCHEDULE

\$19.7668

\$20.2489

\$20.7551 \$21.2613

\$21.7928 \$22.3244

| TABLE 19/EFFECTIVE: 07/ | | | | CHEDULE | | , | | | | E | XHIBIT "B" | | | | |
|--------------------------|-------------|-------------|-------------|--|-----------------|-------------|-------------|-------------|--------------------------|-----------------------|-------------|--|----------------|---|--------------|
| | | | | 44. | | * 1 | SWORN | | 11 N. P. P. P. | | | FROM COL | | | |
| CLASSIFICATION: | STEP A | STEP B | STEP C | STEP D | STEP E | STEP F | STEP G | STEP H | STEP I | STEP J | STEP K | STEP L | STEP M | STEP N | STEP O |
| Sergeant | \$71,387.77 | \$73,172.47 | \$74,957.16 | \$76,831.09 | \$78,705.02 | \$80,672.65 | \$82,640.27 | \$84,706.28 | \$86,772.28 | \$88,941.59 | \$91,110.90 | \$93,388,67 | \$95,666.44 | | \$100,449.77 |
| | \$5,948.98 | \$6,097.71 | \$6,246.43 | \$6,402.59 | \$6,558.75 | \$6,722.72 | | \$7,058.86 | | \$7,411.80 | \$7,592.57 | | | \$8,171,51 | \$8,370,81 |
| | \$34.32105 | \$35.17907 | \$36.03710 | \$36.93802 | \$37.83895 | \$38.78493 | \$39.73090 | \$40.72417 | \$41.71744 | \$42.76038 | \$43.80332 | \$44.89840 | \$45.99348 | \$47.14332 | \$48.29316 |
| Rotational Detective/OIC | \$59,916.31 | \$61,414.22 | \$62,912.13 | \$64,484.93 | \$66,057.74 | \$67,709.18 | \$69,360.62 | \$71,094.64 | \$72,828.65 | \$74,649.37 | \$76,470.09 | \$78,381.84 | \$80,293.59 | | \$84,308.27 |
| 5% Above Police Officer | \$4,993.03 | \$5,117.85 | \$5,242.68 | \$5,373.74 | \$5,504.81 | \$5,642.43 | \$5,780.05 | \$5,924.55 | \$6,069.05 | \$6,220.78 | \$6,372.51 | \$6,531.82 | | \$6,858,41 | \$7,025.69 |
| | \$28.80592 | \$29.52607 | \$30.24622 | \$31.00237 | \$31.75853 | \$32.55249 | \$33.34645 | \$34.18011 | \$35.01378 | \$35.88912 | \$36.76446 | | | \$39.56776 | \$40.53282 |
| Police Officer | \$57,063.15 | \$58,489.73 | \$59,916.30 | \$61,414.21 | \$62,912.12 | \$64,484.92 | \$66,057.72 | \$67,709.17 | \$69,360.61 | \$71,094.63 | \$72.828.64 | \$74,649,36 | \$76,470.07 | | \$80,293.58 |
| | \$4,755.26 | \$4,874.14 | \$4,993.03 | \$5,117.85 | \$5,242.68 | \$5,373.74 | \$5,504.81 | \$5,642.43 | \$5,780.05 | \$5,924.55 | | | | \$6,531,82 | \$6,691.13 |
| | \$27.43421 | \$28.12006 | \$28.80592 | \$29.52606 | \$30.24621 | \$31.00237 | \$31.75852 | \$32.55248 | \$33.34645 | \$34.18011 | \$35.01377 | \$35.88911 | \$36.76446 | | \$38.60268 |
| Reserve Police Officer | \$27.43421 | \$28.12006 | \$28.80592 | \$29.52606 | \$30.24621 | \$31.00237 | \$31.75852 | \$32.55248 | \$33.34645 | \$34.18011 | \$35.01377 | \$35.88911 | | | \$38.60268 |
| Reserve Investigator | \$25.00000 | | | | | | 1 | | | | | | | *************************************** | |
| | | www. | | (1) 19 July 19 | aud bus as in N | ION-SWORN | | SECTION S | 551 a dia (56 74) | THE POPULATION OF THE | | E ROSSIBILISTA | enetičke corus | | |
| CLASSIFICATION: | STEP A | STEP B | STEP C | STEP D | STEP E | STEP F | STEP G | | STEP | STEP J | STEP K | CALL CONTRACT OF THE PARTY OF T | | 1 | |
| Police Admin. Assistant | \$41,349.46 | \$42,383.20 | \$43,416.94 | \$44,502.36 | \$45,587.78 | \$46,727.48 | \$47,867.17 | \$49.063.85 | \$50,260.53 | | | | | 1 | |
| | \$3,445.79 | \$3,531.93 | \$3,618.08 | \$3,708.53 | \$3,798.98 | \$3,893.96 | | | | \$4,293.09 | \$4,397,80 | | | 1 | |
| | \$19.87955 | \$20.37654 | \$20.87353 | \$21.39537 | \$21.91720 | \$22,46513 | \$23.01306 | | | \$24.76781 | \$25.37190 | \$26,00620 | 4 1,5 11 100 | ĺ | |
| Police Dispatcher | \$41,413.58 | \$42,448.92 | \$43,484.26 | \$44,571.37 | \$45,658.47 | \$46,799.93 | \$47,941.40 | | | | | | \$55,498.16 | ľ | |
| | \$3,451.13 | \$3,537.41 | \$3,623.69 | \$3,714.28 | \$3,804.87 | \$3,899.99 | \$3,995.12 | | \$4,194,87 | \$4,299,74 | \$4,404.62 | \$4,514,73 | | | |
| | \$19.91038 | \$20.40813 | \$20.90589 | \$21.42854 | \$21.95119 | \$22,49997 | \$23.04875 | | | \$24.80621 | \$25.41124 | \$26,04653 | | | |
| MLE | \$36,817.45 | \$37,737.89 | \$38,658.32 | \$39,624.78 | \$40,591.24 | \$41,606.02 | | | | \$45,870.64 | | \$48,164.17 | | | |
| | \$3,068.12 | \$3,144.82 | \$3,221.53 | \$3,302.07 | \$3,382.60 | \$3,467.17 | \$3,551.73 | | \$3,729.32 | \$3,822.55 | \$3,915.79 | \$4,013,68 | | | |
| | \$17.7007 | \$18.1432 | \$18.5857 | \$19.0504 | \$19.5150 | \$20.0029 | \$20.4908 | \$21.0030 | \$21.5153 | \$22.0532 | \$22.5911 | \$23.1559 | \$23,7206 | | |
| Police Records Techician | \$34,650.30 | \$35,516.56 | \$36,382.82 | \$37,292.39 | | | | | | | | \$45,329.13 | | | |
| | \$2,887.53 | \$2,959.71 | \$3,031.90 | \$3,107.70 | \$3,183.50 | \$3,263.08 | | \$3,426.24 | \$3,509.80 | \$3,597.55 | \$3,685.29 | | \$3,869.56 | | |
| | 040.0500 | 0.15.05.5 | 4.5 .4.5 | A 12 | | | | | | | +5,500iE0 | | 45,500.00 | | |

\$18.8255 \$19.2846

\$17.0753 \$17.4917 \$17.9290 \$18.3663

\$16.6588

Commission Procedure C-3 Law Enforcement Code of Ethics

Purpose

3-1. Code of Ethics: To insure that all peace officers are fully aware of their individual responsibilities to maintain their own integrity and that of their agency, every peace officer, during basic training, or at the time of appointment, shall be administered the Law Enforcement Code of Ethics, as prescribed in Section 1013 of the Regulations.

Code of Ethics

- **3-2. AS A LAW ENFORCEMENT OFFICER**, my fundamental duty is to serve mankind; to safeguard lives and property; to protect the innocent against deception, the weak against oppression or intimidation, and the peaceful against violence or disorder; and to respect the Constitutional rights of all men to liberty, equality and justice.
 - I WILL keep my private life unsullied as an example to all; maintain courageous calm in the face of danger, scorn, or ridicule; develop self-restraint; and be constantly mindful of the welfare of others. Honest in thought and deed in both my personal and official life, I will be exemplary in obeying the laws of the land and the regulations of my department. Whatever I see or hear of a confidential nature or that is confided to me in my official capacity will be kept ever secret unless revelation is necessary in the performance of my duty.
 - I WILL never act officiously or permit personal feelings, prejudices, animosities or friendships to influence my decisions. With no compromise for crime and with relentless prosecution of criminals, I will enforce the law courteously and appropriately without fear or favor, malice or ill will, never employing unnecessary force or violence and never accepting gratuities.
 - I **RECOGNIZE** the badge of my office as a symbol of public faith, and I accept it as a public trust to be held so long as I am true to the ethics of the police service. I will constantly strive to achieve these objectives and ideals, dedicating myself before God⁽¹⁾ to my chosen profession...law enforcement.

¹ Reference to religious affirmation may be omitted where objected to by the officer.